Courthouse Green

Lot 33, 1750

Smithfield, Virginia

Lots 8 and 33 on the “Plan of the Town of Smithfield”, made in 1750 for Captain Arthur Smith, were offered by him to the county magistrates if they would build the county courthouse in his newly proposed town. The first official reference to the new Town of Smithfield is found in county records shortly afterward when the magistrates ordered the Isle of Wight County Courthouse built on lot 8 where it stands today.

Lot 33, in front of the courthouse and across Main Street, was left vacant for public use as a gathering place for citizens. This was typical for colonial towns, such as Williamsburg, and is referred to in historical documents as the “court green” or “courthouse green.” From 1751 through 1799 this “green” served as the public meeting place and market area for the town and county. It was especially crowded on “court day,” the first Thursday of each month, when hundreds of people from all over the county gathered to observe or participate in court proceedings, to socialize, and to exchange goods and products.

This “green” was also used as the muster ground and drill field for the Isle of Wight County Militia during America’s War for Independence. From this spot the Fourth Virginia Regiment under the command of COL Josiah Parker mustered to march north in 1776 to join GEN George Washington and the Continental Army. A few weeks later, this regiment was in the vanguard of the first great victory for America when they crossed the Delaware River with Washington for the attack on Hessian forces in Trenton, New Jersey.

In 1800 court activity shifted seven miles south to the area around Boykin’s Tavern after the new courthouse was built there. Lot 33 apparently remained vacant for the next 100 years, through the Civil War period, until Dr. Leslie C. Brock built a Victorian style residence on part of it in 1900. This building was destroyed by fire in 1958 and the current rectangular concrete block structure was constructed in 1964 and operated as a Silco Department Store by Mrs. Regina Pencola.
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